A regularly scheduled meeting of the Town Board of Long Lake, Hamilton County, New York was held March 29, 2023 at the Long Lake Town Hall at 07:00 PM and called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America and a prayer by Clark Seaman. Fifteen people attended.

Roll Call: Members present:	Clay J. Arsenault	Supervisor
	Thomas L. Donnelly	Councilman
	Clark J. Seaman	Councilman
	Dean H. Pohl	Councilman
	Richard B. Dechene	Councilman

There was a quorum to conduct the business of the Long Lake Town Board.

Attending for the Town as well were the Confidential Secretary to the Supervisor, Matthew Newby, the First Deputy Town Clerk, Amber Wamback, and the Town Attorney, Carl Ferrentino.

Motion by Thomas Donnelly, seconded by Clark Seaman to accept the February Regular Meeting minutes.

Adopted:	Clay J. Arsenault	Aye
	Thomas L. Donnelly	Aye
	Clark J. Seaman	Aye
	Dean H. Pohl	Aye
	Richard B. Dechene	Aye

Motion by Clark Seaman, seconded by Thomas Donnelly to pay encumbrances as listed on Abstract 3, March 2023.

Adopted:	Clay J. Arsenault	Aye
	Thomas L. Donnelly	Aye
	Clark J. Seaman	Aye
	Dean H. Pohl	Aye
	Richard B. Dechene	Aye

Bills as listed on abstract

Audit of Claims

General Fund #A0153 – A0268	in the amount of	\$149,336.04
Highway Fund #D037 – D055	in the amount of	27,715.12
Water District 1 #SW1026- SW1038	in the amount of	2,727.08
Water District 2 #SW2057 - SW2090	in the amount of	16,284.30

SUPERVISOR'S REPORT

- a. Revenue and Expenditure Reports were in Board's Packets for review.
- b. 2022 annual location use summary from the Adirondack Watershed Institute Stewardship Program was received. The inspection station at the State Boat Launch on Dock Road inspected 2.428 boats, in 3 instances invasive organisms were to be found. The boat wash station at the old highway garage parking lot washed 44 boats all season, and found 3 instances of invasive organisms. Bill Brosseau, director of Stewardship & Education of the Adirondack Watershed Institute at Paul Smith's College sent an email informing the Town that Paul Smith's Adirondack Watershed institute is working with NYS DEC to relocate the boat wash station closer to the State Boat Launch. Mr. Brosseau also informed the Town that the boat wash station from AWI will now be funded by their NYS DEC contract, and the Town of Long Lake will no longer need to fund this operation.
- c. Rev Renewables battery backup project in Raquette Lake, the Town is rapidly adding to our understanding of this project. We suggest anyone that wishes to get insight into this type of project look up the NYSERDA YouTube account and watch their playlist on Battery Energy Storage Systems.
- d. The Raquette Lake Preservation Foundation's annual newsletter was included in Board member's packets. One of the highlights for 2023 is a new invasive species workplan, the plan will have to be filed with the APA and NYS DEC detailing the RLPF's invasive species management plan.
- e. Quarterly safety meeting and leadership meeting was held on March 22,2023, Paul Wilson will be the new Safety Coordinator for the Town, and he will be attending PERMA training in April.

The Leadership meeting was held on March 22, 2023, Matt Newby, Supervisor Arsenault, Alex Roalsvig, Keith Austin, Chad Baker, and Chip Farr were in attendance. One incident that came up in the leadership meeting was an employee was confronted by a member from the public who made them feel unsafe. This incident was discussed, and that employees should never be in the position of feeling unsafe at work while interacting with the public. Training will be set up for employees on how to handle these types of situations if they ever happen, and they will be trained to call the police to help mediate the situation.

- f. State speed limit changes in the Hamlet of long lake will be coming in the near future. The NYS DOT has been conducting a speed study within the Hamlet for close to two years, after they received letters from Long Lake residents to decrease the speed limit on Deerland.
- g. Parks and Recreation has ended their '22 '23 grooming season, a total of 47 days and over 1100 hours of grooming this season despite the challenging winter weather. Chad Baker with help from Lenny Croote from Hamilton County Soil and Water was able to do GPS mapping of all snowmobile trails in Long Lake and Raquette Lake. This is done every 3 years so the Town is eligible for NYS grants from NYS parks, Recreation, and Historic Preservation. Thank you to the Town and County Highway Departments for shelving roads for the snowmobile season.

The Long Lake Parks and recreation department held a Ceilidh on March 18th at the Long Lake Town Hall, the Long Lake Lions Club sold food at the event. The event was free to enter and over 125 people attended. Great job to all that helped with this event. Mt. Sabattis Geiger Arena hosted the Long lake School's After School Program on Mondays and Thursdays this winter. A big thank you goes out to the Long Lake Teachers for their help, as well as the Friends of Long Lake Library, Long Lake Lions Club, Patty Farrell, Jimmy Cooney and Hallie Bond for sponsoring the Adirondack Local Culture Program.

h. Jack Carney wrote a poem titled Black Bear and had it published in the Adirondack Almanack.

OLD BUSINESS

RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT QUOTE FROM VECTOR ONE FOR MANAGED IT SERVICES

Dated: March 29th, 2023

WHEREAS, the Town Board of the Town of Long Lake originally accepted a quote at the February 22nd, 2023 Town Board Meeting from Mytechs to provide IT services to the Town; and **WHEREAS**, MyTechs suffered the death of one of their company's partner, and has since sold it's IT management services to Vector One; and

WHEREAS, Vector One has provided the attached quote for monthly managed IT services which is similar to the previously accepted MyTechs quote; and

WHEREAS, Vector One has agreed to do the initial hardware install and installation of cybersecurity devices and software at similar, if not the same, rates as quoted by MyTechs; and WHEREAS, Vector One will then give the Town a quote for email conversion and Microsoft 365 setup once the hardware and cybersecurity measures are installed, to ensure a fair and accurate quote;

Now, Therefore, be it resolved that the Town Board of the Town of Long Lake,

Hereby accepts the attached quote from Vector One to provide monthly managed IT services, and authorizes the Town Supervisor to approve further projects that are in line with budgeted

amounts and those of the Town Procurement Policy.

Motion by Clark Seaman, seconded by Richard Dechene to accept Vector One IT services quote.

Clay J. Arsenault	Aye
Thomas L. Donnelly	Aye
Clark J. Seaman	Aye
Dean H. Pohl	Aye
Richard B. Dechene	Aye
	Thomas L. Donnelly Clark J. Seaman Dean H. Pohl

Clerk's Note: Vector One IT Service quote is available for review at the Long Lake Town Clerk's Office during open hours.

NEW BUSINESS

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 2023 CONTRACT WITH THE NORTHERN FOREST CENTER BY THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF LONG LAKE

DATED: March 29, 2023

WHEREAS: The Northern Forest Center is a not-for-profit corporation committed to forging deep partnerships and securing resources to support jobs, conserve forestland and strengthen communities in the region. All services being available to the residents and visitors of the Town of Long Lake, and

WHEREAS: the sum of \$750 was appropriated in the 2023 Town of Long Lake Budget in Account No. A1010.4 for payment to the Northern Forest Center,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: That the Town Board of the Town of Long Lake hereby authorizes the Supervisor to enter into a contract with the Northern Forest Center for the purpose of promoting the forest industries of Long Lake and other communities in the Northern Forest Region, providing a network to support communities in building recreational forest trails and other uses, and to help address the issue of affordable housing; and paying the amount of \$750 which represents the Town's share for 2023.

Motion by Thomas Donnelly, seconded by Richard Dechene to approve the 2023 contract with the Northern Forest Center.

Adopted:	Clay J. Arsenault	Aye
	Thomas L. Donnelly	Aye
	Clark J. Seaman	Aye
	Dean H. Pohl	Aye
	Richard B. Dechene	Aye

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 2023 CONTRACT WITH THE ADIRONDACK LAKES CENTER FOR THE ARTS BY THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF LONG LAKE

DATED: March 29, 2023

WHEREAS: The Adirondack Lakes Center for the Arts is a not-for-profit, tax-exempt corporation which provides arts and cultural services including music, dance, and theatre performances, workshops and classes in the visual and performing arts, exhibits by region and national artists, artist's residencies in schools, pre-school for three and four-year-olds, and administration of the New York State Decentralization Re-grant Program for Hamilton County. All services being available to the residents and visitors of the Town of Long Lake, and

WHEREAS: the sum of \$4,000 was appropriated in the 2023 Town of Long Lake Budget in Account No. A1010.4 for payment to the Adirondack Lakes Center for the Arts,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: That the Town Board of the Town of Long Lake hereby authorizes the Supervisor to enter into a contract with the Adirondack Lakes Center for the Arts for the purpose of providing arts and cultural services which will serve its residents and visitors, and paying the amount of \$4,000 which represents the Town's share for 2023:

Motion by Dean Pohl, seconded by Richard Dechene to approve the 2023 contract with the Adirondack Lakes Center for the Arts.

Adopted:	Clay J. Arsenault	Aye
	Thomas L. Donnelly	Aye
	Clark J. Seaman	Aye
	Dean H. Pohl	Aye
	Richard B. Dechene	Aye

RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT BID FOR THE 2023 PHASE 3 MOUNTAIN BIKE TRAIL PROJECT RFP

DATED: March 29th, 2023

WHEREAS, the Town Board of the Town of Long Lake originally budgeted \$50,000 for Phase 3 of the Mt Sabattis Multi-Use Mountain Bike Trail Project; and

WHEREAS, the Town Board approved the publishing of an RFP to receive proposals for this bid, and such RFP was published both online and in the Hamilton County Express; and

WHEREAS, the only bid received was opened by the Town Clerk on March 17 with witnesses;

Now, Therefore, be it resolved that the Town Board of the Town of Long Lake,

Hereby accepts the proposal of Wilderness Property Management (WPM) for \$45,990 to build out Phase 3 of the Mt. Sabattis Multi-Use Mountain Bike Trails.

Motion by Thomas Donnelly, seconded by Richard Dechene to approve the bid from Wilderness Property Management for phase 3 of the mountain bike trail on Mt. Sabattis.

Adopted:	Clay J. Arsenault	Aye
	Thomas L. Donnelly	Aye
	Clark J. Seaman	Aye
	Dean H. Pohl	Aye
	Richard B. Dechene	Aye

RESOLUTION TO SIGN AGREEMENT WITH CHA CONSULTING, INC. FOR TOWN ENGINEERING SERVICES

DATED: March 29th, 2023

WHEREAS, the Town Board of the Town of Long Lake recognizes the need for a professional, well experienced, and capable Engineer to design, manage and assist in sourcing funding for assorted public works projects; and

WHEREAS, The Town has specific projects for which CHA is especially suited for, including the rehabilitation of sidewalks, water infrastructure redevelopment, and landscape and recreational construction; and

WHEREAS, CHA has offered the attached Municipal Consulting Agreement which outlines services to be performed, scope of work, and fees;

Now, Therefore, be it resolved that the Town Board of the Town of Long Lake,

Hereby authorizes the Town Supervisor to sign the Municipal Consulting Agreement with CHA Consulting, Inc. to provide consulting and/or engineering services to the Town. Each individual assignment will include a stand-alone scope of services to be performed and an associated fee.

Motion by Clark Seaman, seconded by Richard Dechene to approve the agreement with CHA Consulting for Town engineering services.

Adopted:	Clay J. Arsenault	Aye
	Thomas L. Donnelly	Aye
	Clark J. Seaman	Aye
	Dean H. Pohl	Aye
	Richard B. Dechene	Aye

*Councilman Dean H. Pohl then addressed the Town Board members and the public concerning the matters connected to the upcoming new business related to regulation of, and real property exemptions for battery electric storage systems. Councilman Pohl indicated he had a potential conflict of interest under the Town's Ethics Code and that therefore he would recuse himself from any matters connected to the remaining new business matters on the agenda and the project now being proposed in the Hamlet of Raquette Lake. Additionally, the Councilman indicated he would abstain from any voting or discussion on the matters.

Proposed by Supervisor Arsenault

Proposed Town of Long Lake Local Law (Introductory) No. 1 of 2023

Proposed March 29, 2023

Town of Long Lake

County of Hamilton, New York

Be it enacted by the Town Board of the Town of Long Lake, Hamilton County, New York as follows:

1. Title

The title of this Law is: TOWN OF LONG LAKE BATTERY ENERGY STORAGE SYSTEM LAW

2. Authority

This Battery Energy Storage System Law is adopted pursuant to Article IX of the New York State Constitution, \$2(c)(6) and (10), New York Statute of Local Governments, \$10(1) and (7); sections 261-263 of the Town Law and section 10 of the Municipal Home Rule Law of the State of New York, which authorize the Town to adopt laws that advance and protect the health, safety and welfare of the community.

3. Statement of Purpose

This Battery Energy Storage System Law is adopted to advance and protect the public health, safety, welfare, and quality of life of Town by creating regulations for the installation and use of battery energy storage systems, with the following objectives:

A. To provide a regulatory scheme for the designation of properties suitable for the location, construction, operation, and decommissioning of battery energy storage systems;

B. To ensure compatible land uses in the vicinity of the areas affected by battery energy storage systems;

C. To mitigate the impacts of battery energy storage systems on environmental resources such as important agricultural lands, forests, wildlife, and other protected resources; and

D. To create synergy between battery energy storage system development and stated goals of the community pursuant to the Town of Long Lake Comprehensive Plan.

4. Definitions

As used in this Local Law the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

ANSI: American National Standards Institute

BATTERY(IES): A single cell or a group of cells connected together electrically in series, in parallel, or a combination of both, which can charge, discharge, and store energy electrochemically. For the purposes of this law, batteries utilized in consumer products are excluded from these requirements.

BATTERY ENERGY STORAGE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM: An electronic system that protects energy storage systems from operating outside their safe operating parameters and disconnects electrical power to the energy storage system or places it in a safe condition if potentially hazardous temperatures or other conditions are detected.

BATTERY ENERGY STORAGE SYSTEM: One or more devices, assembled together, capable of storing energy in order to supply electrical energy at a future time, not to include a stand-alone 12-volt car battery or an electric motor vehicle. A battery energy storage system is classified as a Tier 1 or Tier 2 Battery Energy Storage System as follows:

a. Tier 1 Battery Energy Storage Systems have an aggregate energy capacity less than or equal to 600kWh and, if in a room or enclosed area, consist of only a single energy storage system technology.

b. Tier 2 Battery Energy Storage Systems have an aggregate energy capacity greater than 600kWh or are comprised of more than one storage battery technology in a room or enclosed area.

CELL: The basic electrochemical unit, characterized by an anode and a cathode, used to receive, store, and deliver electrical energy.

COMMISSIONING: A systematic process that provides documented confirmation that a battery energy storage system functions according to the intended design criteria and complies with applicable code requirements.

DEDICATED-USE BUILDING: A building that is built for the primary intention of housing battery energy storage system equipment, is classified as Group F-1 occupancy as defined in the International Building Code, and complies with the following:

The building's only use is battery energy storage, energy generation, and other electrical gridrelated operations.

No other occupancy types are permitted in the building.

Occupants in the rooms and areas containing battery energy storage systems are limited to personnel that operate, maintain, service, test, and repair the battery energy storage system and other energy systems.

Administrative and support personnel are permitted in areas within the buildings that do not contain battery energy storage system, provided the following:

a. The areas do not occupy more than 10 percent of the building area of the story in which they are located.

b. A means of egress is provided from the administrative and support use areas to the public way that does not require occupants to traverse through areas containing battery energy storage systems or other energy system equipment.

ENERGY CODE: The New York State Energy Conservation Construction Code adopted pursuant to Article 11 of the Energy Law, as currently in effect and as hereafter amended from time to time.

FIRE CODE: The fire code section of the New York State Uniform Fire Prevention and Building Code adopted pursuant to Article 18 of the Executive Law, as currently in effect and as hereafter amended from time to time.

NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED TESTING LABORATORY (NRTL): A U.S. Department of Labor designation recognizing a private sector organization to perform certification for certain products to ensure that they meet the requirements of both the construction and general industry OSHA electrical standards.

NEC: National Electric Code.

NFPA: National Fire Protection Association.

NON-DEDICATED-USE BUILDING: All buildings that contain a battery energy storage system and do not comply with the dedicated-use building requirements.

NON-PARTICIPATING PROPERTY: Any property that is not a participating property.

NON-PARTICIPATING RESIDENCE: Any residence located on non-participating property.

OCCUPIED COMMUNITY BUILDING: Any building in Occupancy Group A, B, E, I, R, as defined in the International Building Code, including but not limited to schools, colleges, daycare facilities, hospitals, correctional facilities, public libraries, theaters, stadiums, apartments, hotels, and houses of worship.

PARTICIPATING PROPERTY: A battery energy storage system host property or any real property that is the subject of an agreement that provides for the payment of monetary compensation to the landowner from the battery energy storage system owner (or affiliate) regardless of whether any part of a battery energy storage system is constructed on the property.

UNIFORM CODE: the New York State Uniform Fire Prevention and Building Code adopted pursuant to Article 18 of the Executive Law, as currently in effect and as hereafter amended from time to time.

5. Applicability

A. The requirements of this Local Law shall apply to all battery energy storage systems permitted, installed, or modified in Town after the effective date of this Local Law, excluding general maintenance and repair.

B. Battery energy storage systems constructed or installed prior to the effective date of this Local Law shall not be required to meet the requirements of this Local Law.

C. Modifications to, retrofits or replacements of an existing battery energy storage system that increase the total battery energy storage system designed discharge duration or power rating shall be subject to this Local Law.

6. General Requirements

A, A building permit and an electrical permit shall be required for installation of all battery energy storage systems.

B. Issuance of permits and approvals by the Town Board shall include review pursuant to the State Environmental Quality Review Act ("SEQRA") [ECL Article 8 and its implementing regulations at 6 NYCRR Part 617].

C. All battery energy storage systems, all Dedicated Use Buildings, and all other buildings or structures that (1) contain or are otherwise associated with a battery energy storage system and (2) subject to the Uniform Code and/or the Energy Code shall be designed, erected, and installed in accordance with all applicable provisions of the Uniform Code, all applicable provisions of the Energy Code, and all applicable provisions of the codes, regulations, and industry standards as referenced in the Uniform Code, the Energy Code, and the Town Code.

D. Coordinated review under SEQRA for matters that require Adirondack Park Agency Permitting shall be conducted in such a manner that the Town is kept fully advised by any permit applicant under this local law with all land use determinations and review by the Adirondack Park Agency

7. Permitting Requirements for Tier 1 Battery Energy Storage Systems

Tier 1 Battery Energy Storage Systems shall be permitted Town wide, subject to the Uniform Code and the issuance of a Building Permit by the Code Enforcement Officer.

8. Permitting Requirements for Tier 2 Battery Energy Storage Systems

Tier 2 Battery Energy Storage Systems are permitted through the issuance of a Battery Storage System Permit for a facility located within the Town and shall be subject to the Uniform Code and the application requirements set forth in this Section and notice of application to the Local Fire District.

A. Applications for the installation of Tier 2 Battery Energy Storage System shall be:

1) reviewed by the Code Enforcement and Town Board for completeness. An application shall be complete when it addresses all matters listed in this Local Law including, but not necessarily limited to, (i) compliance with all applicable provisions of the Uniform Code and all applicable provisions of the Energy Code and (ii) matters relating to the proposed battery energy storage system and Floodplain, Utility Lines and Electrical Circuitry, Signage, Lighting, Vegetation and Tree-cutting, Noise, Decommissioning, Ownership Changes, Safety, and Permit Time Frame and Abandonment. Applicants shall be advised within **12** business days of the completeness of their application or any deficiencies that must be addressed prior to substantive review at regular and special Town Board Meetings.

2) subject to a public hearing to hear all comments for and against the application. The Town Board shall have a notice printed in its newspaper of general circulation at **least 7 days** in advance of such hearing. Applicants shall have delivered the notice by first class mail to adjoining landowners or landowners within 500 feet of the property at least 14 days prior to such a hearing. Proof of mailing shall be provided to the Town Board at the public hearing.

3) referred to the entity handling review pursuant to General Municipal Law § 239m if required.

4) upon closing of the public hearing, the Town Board shall act on the application within 62 days of the public hearing, which can include approval, approval with conditions, or denial. The 62-day period may be extended upon consent by both the Town Board and Applicant.

B. Utility Lines and Electrical Circuitry. All on-site utility lines shall be placed underground to the extent feasible and as permitted by the serving utility, with the exception of the main service connection at the utility company right-of-way and any new interconnection equipment, including without limitation any poles, with new easements and right-of-way.

C. Signage.

1) The signage shall be in compliance with **ANSI Z535** and shall include the type of technology associated with the battery energy storage systems, any special hazards associated, the type of suppression system installed in the area of battery energy storage systems, and 24-hour emergency contact information, including reach-back phone number.

2) As required by the NEC, disconnect and other emergency shutoff information shall be clearly displayed on a light reflective surface. A clearly visible warning sign concerning voltage shall be placed at the base of all pad-mounted transformers and substations.

D. Lighting. Lighting of the battery energy storage systems shall be limited to that minimally required for safety and operational purposes and shall be reasonably shielded and downcast from abutting properties.

E. Vegetation and tree cutting. Areas within [10] feet on each side of Tier 2 Battery Energy Storage Systems shall be cleared of combustible vegetation and other combustible growth.

Single specimens of trees, shrubbery, or cultivated ground cover such as green grass, ivy, succulents, or similar plants used as ground covers shall be permitted to be exempt provided that they do not form a means of readily transmitting fire. Removal of trees should be minimized to the extent possible.

F. Noise. The **1-hour** average noise generated from the battery energy storage systems, components, and associated ancillary equipment shall not exceed a noise level of **60 dBA** as measured at the outside wall of any non-participating residence or occupied community building. Applicants may submit equipment and component manufacturers noise ratings to demonstrate compliance. The applicant may be required to provide Operating Sound Pressure Level measurements from a reasonable number of sampled locations at the perimeter of the battery energy storage system to demonstrate compliance with this standard.

G. Decommissioning.

1) Decommissioning Plan. The applicant shall submit a decommissioning plan, developed in accordance with the Uniform Code, to be implemented upon abandonment and/or in conjunction with removal from the facility. The decommissioning plan shall include:

a. A narrative description of the activities to be accomplished, including who will perform that activity and at what point in time, for complete physical removal of all battery energy storage system components, structures, equipment, security barriers, and transmission lines from the site;

b. Disposal of all solid and hazardous waste in accordance with local, state, and federal waste disposal regulations;

c. The anticipated life of the battery energy storage system;

d. The estimated decommissioning costs and how said estimate was determined;

e. The method of ensuring that funds will be available for decommissioning and restoration;

f. The method by which the decommissioning cost will be kept current;

g. The manner in which the site will be restored, including a description of how any changes to the surrounding areas and other systems adjacent to the battery energy storage system, such as, but not limited to, structural elements, building penetrations, means of egress, and required fire detection suppression systems, will be protected during decommissioning, and confirmed as being acceptable after the system is removed; and

h. A listing of any contingencies for removing an intact operational energy storage system from service, and for removing an energy storage system from service that has been damaged by a fire or other event.

2) Decommissioning Fund. The owner and/or operator of the energy storage system, shall continuously maintain a fund or bond payable to the Town, in a form approved by the Town Board for the removal of the battery energy storage system, in an amount to be determined by the Town Board, for the period of the life of the facility. This fund may consist of a letter of credit from a State of New York licensed-financial institution. All costs of the financial security shall be borne by the applicant.

H. The Battery Energy Storage System application for a Tier 2 Battery Energy Storage System shall include the following information:

1) Property lines and physical features, including roads, for the project site.

2) Proposed changes to the landscape of the site, grading, vegetation clearing and planting, exterior lighting, and screening vegetation or structures.

3) A three-line electrical diagram detailing the battery energy storage system layout, associated components, and electrical interconnection methods, with all National Electrical Code compliant disconnects and over current devices.

4) A preliminary equipment specification sheet that documents the proposed battery energy storage system components, inverters and associated electrical equipment that are to be installed. A final equipment specification sheet shall be submitted prior to the issuance of building permit.

5) Name, address, and contact information of proposed or potential system installer and the owner and/or operator of the battery energy storage system. Such information of the final system installer shall be submitted prior to the issuance of building permit.

6) Name, address, phone number, and signature of the project Applicant, as well as all the property owners, demonstrating their consent to the application and the use of the property for the battery energy storage system.

7) Adirondack Park Agency land use designations for the parcel(s) of land comprising the project site.

8) Commissioning Plan. Such plan shall document and verify that the system and its associated controls and safety systems are in proper working condition per requirements set forth in the Uniform Code. Where commissioning is required by the Uniform Code, Battery energy storage system commissioning shall be conducted by a New York State (NYS) Licensed Professional Engineer after the installation is complete but prior to final inspection and approval. A corrective action plan shall be developed for any open or continuing issues that are allowed to be continued after commissioning. A report describing the results of the system commissioning and including the results of the initial acceptance testing required in the Uniform Code shall be provided to Code Enforcement Officer and Town Board prior to final inspection and approval and maintained at an approved on-site location.

9) Fire Safety Compliance Plan. Such plan shall document and verify that the system and its associated controls and safety systems are in compliance with the Uniform Code.

10) Operation and Maintenance Manual. Such plan shall describe continuing battery energy storage system maintenance and property upkeep, as well as design, construction, installation, testing and commissioning information and shall meet all requirements set forth in the Uniform Code.

11) Erosion and sediment control and storm water management plans prepared to New York State Department of Environmental Conservation standards, if applicable, and to such standards as may be established by the Town of Long Lake.

12) Prior to the issuance of the building permit or final approval by the Town Board, but not required as part of the application, engineering documents must be signed and sealed by a NYS Licensed Professional Engineer.

13) Emergency Operations Plan. A copy of the approved Emergency Operations Plan shall be given to the system owner, the local fire department, and local fire code official. A permanent copy shall also be placed in an approved location to be accessible to facility personnel, fire code officials, and emergency responders. The emergency operations plan shall include the following information:

a. Procedures for safe shutdown, de-energizing, or isolation of equipment and systems under emergency conditions to reduce the risk of fire, electric shock, and personal injuries, and for safe start-up following cessation of emergency conditions.

b. Procedures for inspection and testing of associated alarms, interlocks, and controls.

c. Procedures to be followed in response to notifications from the Battery Energy Storage Management System, when provided, that could signify potentially dangerous conditions, including shutting down equipment, summoning service and repair personnel, and providing agreed upon notification to fire department personnel for potentially hazardous conditions in the event of a system failure.

d. Emergency procedures to be followed in case of fire, explosion, release of liquids or vapors, damage to critical moving parts, or other potentially dangerous conditions. Procedures can include sounding the alarm, notifying the fire department, evacuating personnel, de-energizing equipment, and controlling and extinguishing the fire.

e. Response considerations similar to a safety data sheet (SDS) that will address response safety concerns and extinguishment when an SDS is not required.

f. Procedures for dealing with battery energy storage system equipment damaged in a fire or other emergency event, including maintaining contact information for personnel qualified to safely remove damaged battery energy storage system equipment from the facility.

g. Other procedures as determined necessary by the [Village/Town/City] to provide for the safety of occupants, neighboring properties, and emergency responders.

h. Procedures and schedules for conducting drills of these procedures and for training local first responders on the contents of the plan and appropriate response procedures.

I. Permit Standards.

1) Setbacks. Tier 2 Battery Energy Storage Systems shall comply with the setback requirements of the underlying Adirondack Park Agency land classifications for principal structures.

2) Height. Tier 2 Battery Energy Storage Systems shall comply with the building height limitations for principal structures of the underlying Adirondack Park Agency land classifications.

3) Fencing Requirements. Tier 2 Battery Energy Storage Systems, including all mechanical equipment, shall be enclosed by a 7-foot-high fence with a self-locking gate to prevent unauthorized access unless housed in a dedicated-use building and not interfering with ventilation or exhaust ports.

4) Screening and Visibility. Tier 2 Battery Energy Storage Systems shall have views minimized from adjacent properties to the extent reasonably practicable using architectural features, earth berms, landscaping, or other screening methods that will harmonize with the character of the property and surrounding area and not interfering with ventilation or exhaust ports.

J. Ownership Changes. If the owner of the battery energy storage system changes or the owner of the property changes, the Battery Electric Storage System permit shall remain in effect, provided that the successor owner or operator assumes in writing all of the obligations of the Battery Electric Storage System permit, and decommissioning plan. A new owner or operator of the battery energy storage system shall notify the Code Enforcement/Zoning Enforcement Officer and Sole Assessor of such change in ownership or operator within 30 days of the ownership change. A new owner or operator must provide such notification to the Code Enforcement/Zoning Enforcement Officer in writing. The Battery Electric Storage System permit and all other local approvals for the battery energy storage system would be void if a new owner or operator fails to provide written notification to the Code Enforcement/Zoning Enforcement Officer in the required timeframe. Reinstatement of a void Battery Electric Storage System permit will be subject to the same review and approval processes for new applications under this Local Law.

9. Safety

A. System Certification. Battery energy storage systems and equipment shall be listed by a Nationally Recognized Testing Laboratory to UL 9540 (Standard for battery energy storage systems and Equipment) or approved equivalent, with subcomponents meeting each of the following standards as applicable:

1) UL 1973 (Standard for Batteries for Use in Stationary, Vehicle Auxiliary Power and Light Electric Rail Applications),

2) UL 1642 (Standard for Lithium Batteries),

3) UL 1741 or UL 62109 (Inverters and Power Converters),

4) Certified under the applicable electrical, building, and fire prevention codes as required.

5) Alternatively, field evaluation by an approved testing laboratory for compliance with UL9540

6) (or approved equivalent) and applicable codes, regulations and safety standards may be used to meet system certification requirements.

B. Site Access. Battery energy storage systems shall be maintained in good working order and in accordance with industry standards. Site access shall be maintained, including snow removal at a level acceptable to the local fire department and, if the Tier 2 Battery Energy Storage System is located in an ambulance district, the local ambulance corps.

C. Battery energy storage systems, components, and associated ancillary equipment shall have required working space clearances, and electrical circuitry shall be within weatherproof enclosures marked with the environmental rating suitable for the type of exposure in compliance with NFPA 70.

10. Permit Time Frame and Abandonment

A. The Special Use Permit and site plan approval for a battery energy storage system shall be valid for a period of 24 months, provided that a building permit is issued for construction and construction is commenced. In the event construction is not completed in accordance with the final site plan, as may have been amended and approved, as required by the Town Board within 24 months after approval, the Town may extend the time to complete construction for 180 days. If the owner and/or operator fails to perform substantial construction after 36 months, the approvals shall expire.

B. The battery energy storage system shall be considered abandoned when it ceases to operate consistently for more than one year. If the owner and/or operator fails to comply with decommissioning upon any abandonment, the Town may, at its discretion, enter the property and utilize the available bond and/or security for the removal of a Tier 2 Battery Energy Storage System and restoration of the site in accordance with the decommissioning plan.

11. Enforcement

Any violation of this Battery Energy Storage System Law shall be subject to the same enforcement requirements, including the civil and criminal penalties, provided for the Town Code and under state law.

12. Severability

The invalidity or unenforceability of any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, provision, or phrase of the aforementioned sections, as declared by the valid judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional, shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, provision, or phrase, which shall remain in full force and effect.

13. Effective Date

This Local Law shall take effect immediately upon filing in the office of the New York State Secretary of State in accordance with Section 27 of the Municipal Home Rule Law.

[End text of proposed Local Law No. 1 of 2023]

LONG LAKE TOWN BOARD - TOWN OF LONG LAKE, HAMILTON COUNTY, NEW YORK Resolution of March 29, 2023, at a Duly Noticed Regular Meeting

Authorizing Consideration, Public Notice, and Hearing by the Long Lake Town Board for Proposed

Local Law-Introductory No. #1-of 2023

WHEREAS, Town Supervisor, Clay Arsenault has duly introduced a proposed Local Law to entitled: **TOWN OF LONG LAKE BATTERY ENERGY STORAGE SYSTEM** LAW";

WHEREAS, prior to enacting any local law, a public hearing shall be held to allow any person wishing to speak in favor or against the proposed Local Law.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1- The Town Board of the Town of Long Lake hereby orders the Town Clerk to provide the necessary publication in the official newspaper of the Town and posting of public notice for a Hearing.

2- All parties in attendance to such hearing be permitted an opportunity to speak on behalf of, or in opposition to, said Proposed Local Law, or any part thereof on <u>Thursday, April 20th, 2023</u> <u>7:00 pm</u>, at the scheduled place, the Long Lake Town Hall, preceding a Special Town Board scheduled on that date.

3- Members of the public may submit written comments until that time of the hearing.

4-The full text of the proposed local law shall be made available for review on the Town's website and at the Town Clerk's office during regular business hours.

Motion by Supervisor Clay Arsenault, seconded by Clark Seaman to publish the notice of public hearing for Local Law #1 of 2023.

Adopted:	Clay J. Arsenault	Aye
	Thomas L. Donnelly	Aye
	Clark J. Seaman	Aye
	Dean H. Pohl	Abstain
	Richard B. Dechene	Aye

Proposed by Supervisor Arsenault

Proposed Town of Long Lake Local Law (Introductory) No. 2 of 2023

Proposed March 29, 2023

Town of Long Lake

County of Hamilton, New York

BE IT ENACTED by the Town Board of the Town of Long Lake, County of Hamilton, State of New York, as follows:

1. Title

The Title of this Local Law shall be: A LOCAL LAW TO OPT-OUT OF REAL PROPERTY TAX LAW §487.

2. Legislative intent.

New York Real Property Tax Law §487 exempts real property which includes a solar or wind energy system, farm waste energy system, micro-hydroelectric energy system, fuel cell electric generating system, micro-combined heat and power generating equipment system, electric energy storage equipment and electric energy storage system, or fuel-flexible linear generator electric generating system, from taxation to the extent of any increase in the value thereof by reason of the inclusion of system for a period of fifteen years. Real Property Tax Law §487 further provides the Town of Long Lake with the option to opt-out of the RPTL §487 tax exemption by enacting a local law stating that no exemption under RPTL §487 shall be applicable within Long Lake's jurisdiction. The Town Board of the Town of Long Lake finds that it is in the best interest of the Town to tax property value increases related to real property potentially subject to the exemption granted under RPTL §487 at its full assessed value.

3. Opt-Out of Real Property Tax Law §487 Exemption.

18

The tax exemption made available by Real Property Tax Law §487 shall not be applicable within the boundaries of the Town of Long Lake with respect to any solar or wind energy system, farm waste energy system, micro-hydroelectric energy system, fuel cell electric generating system, micro-combined heat and power generating equipment system, electric energy storage equipment and electric energy storage system, or fuel-flexible linear generator electric generating system, hereafter constructed, or to any other energy system eligible for the real property tax exemption pursuant to §487 of the Real Property Tax Law.

4. Authority.

This Local Law is authorized by and enacted pursuant to the New York State Constitution, the New York Municipal Home Rule Law, the Statute of Local Governments, section 487 of the Real Property Tax Law, and the Town Law of the State of New York.

5. Severability.

If any provision, word, clause, sentence, paragraph, section, article, or part of this local law, or the application thereof to any person or circumstances, shall be adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgement shall not affect, impair, or invalidate any other parts of this local law or the application of this law, or any part thereof, to other persons or circumstances.

6. Effective Date.

This local law shall take effect immediately upon filing with the Secretary of State.

[End of Text of Proposes Local Law Introductory No. 2 of 2023]

LONG LAKE TOWN BOARD - TOWN OF LONG LAKE, HAMILTON COUNTY, NEW YORK Resolution of March 29, 2023, at a Duly Noticed Regular Meeting

Authorizing Consideration, Public Notice, and Hearing by the Long Lake Town Board for Proposed

Local Law-Introductory No. #2-of 2023

WHEREAS, Town Supervisor, Clay Arsenault has duly introduced a proposed Local Law to entitled: A LOCAL LAW TO OPT-OUT OF REAL PROPERTY TAX LAW §487;

WHEREAS, prior to enacting any local law, a public hearing shall be held to allow any person wishing to speak in favor or against the proposed Local Law.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1- The Town Board of the Town of Long Lake hereby orders the Town Clerk to provide the necessary publication in the official newspaper of the Town and posting of public notice for a Hearing.

2- All parties in attendance to such hearing be permitted an opportunity to speak on behalf of, or in opposition to, said Proposed Local Law, or any part thereof on <u>Thursday, April 20th, 2023</u> <u>7:00 pm</u>, at the scheduled place, the Long Lake Town Hall, preceding a Special Town Board scheduled on that date.

3- Members of the public may submit written comments until that time of the hearing.

4-The full text of the proposed local law shall be made available for review on the Town's website and at the Town Clerk's office during regular business hours.

Motion by Supervisor Clay Arsenault, seconded by Thomas Donnelly to publish the notice of public hearing for Local Law #2 of 2023.

Adopted:	Clay J. Arsenault	Aye
	Thomas L. Donnelly	Aye
	Clark J. Seaman	Aye
	Dean H. Pohl	Abstain
	Richard B. Dechene	Aye

PUBLIC COMMENT

Nate Hosley asked the board if a Tesla Wall battery system will be affected under Local Law #1 of 2023?

Town Attorney Ferrentino told the threshold for obtaining a Town Board permit under the proposed local law would be 600Wh, which is far larger than the typical home system. A building permit would still be required.

Elizabeth Forsell asked if there was any chance there would be a boat wash station placed in Raquette Lake?

The Supervisor informed Mrs. Forsell that would be a question for the NYS DEC.

Mrs. Forsell asked if Dixie LeBlanc is still the Town Clerk, Mrs. Forsell has not seen her at meetings or in the office for a long time, is she not required to be here?

Town Attorney Ferrentino informed Mrs. Forsell that the Town Board is appraised of the situation. The Town Board has been advised that it possesses no authority to remove elected town officials for absence or otherwise and that the sole remedy for addressing any problems

with elected officials during a term of office is under the New York Public Officers Law(Section36), and that the persons authorized under the statute to institute a judicial action with the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court are the County District Attorney and any citizen-resident of the Town and not the Town Board.

Mrs. Forsell informed the Board that the power company has been cutting trees at the South Inlet Bridge in Raquette Lake.

George Eckerdt presented thee Town Board with a printout of comments regarding the Raquette Lake Grid Battery proposal, he commented he sees this kind of project out dated in the next 7-10 years.

Aris Bird asked if there has been a date set to have an informational meeting with Rev Renewables and National Grid? Mrs. Bird also suggested the Board to familiarize themselves with the current sites Rev Renewables has, which are in a desert like climate not like the Adirondacks.

Clay said that a meeting date will be set up for Rev Renewables and National Grid to answer questions and educate the public and Board of this project in May.

James Blanchard voiced his extreme dislike for Rev Renewables project being put in Raquette Lake, and would like to know how much this project is going to cost and where the money is coming from?

Clay said he has asked and not received a straight answer from either company, and hope to get more information as soon as he can.

Motion by Richard Dechene, seconded by Clark Seaman to adjourn at 7:43.

Adopted:	Clay J. Arsenault	Aye
	Thomas L. Donnelly	Aye
	Clark J. Seaman	Aye
	Dean H. Pohl	Aye
	Richard B. Dechene	Aye

Attested by: ____

Amber L. Wamback, First Deputy Town Clerk